
AGENDA FOR

LICENSING AND SAFETY PANEL

Contact:: Nicole Tilly, Democratic Services Officer
Direct Line: 0161 253 5398
E-mail: n.l.tilly@bury.gov.uk
Web Site: www.bury.gov.uk

To: All Members of Licensing and Safety Panel

Councillors : P Adams, N Bayley, I Bevan, J Grimshaw, 
R Hodkinson, D Jones (Chair), G Keeley, O Kersh, 
A McKay, Sarah Southworth, J Walker and S Wright

Dear Member/Colleague

Licensing and Safety Panel

You are invited to attend a meeting of the Licensing and Safety Panel 
which will be held as follows:-

Date: Tuesday, 5 September 2017

Place: Town Hall, Knowsley Street, Bury

Time: 7.00 pm

Briefing

Facilities:

If Opposition Members and Co-opted Members require 
briefing on any particular item on the Agenda, the 
appropriate Director/Senior Officer originating the 
related report should be contacted.

Notes:



AGENDA

1  APOLOGIES FOR ABSENCE  

2  DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST  

Members of the Licensing and Safety Panel are asked to consider whether 
they have an interest in any of the matters on the agenda, and if so, to 
formally declare that interest.  

3  MINUTES  (Pages 1 - 10)

Minutes of the last meeting held on 27 July 2017 are attached.

4  PUBLIC QUESTION TIME  

Questions are invited from members of the public present at the meeting 
on any matters for which this Panel is responsible.

Approximately 30 minutes will be set aside for Public Question Time if 
required.

5  OPERATIONAL REPORT  (Pages 11 - 12)

A report by the Assistant Director (Localities) is attached.

6  CONDITIONS RELATING TO A DOG CRECHE  (Pages 13 - 80)

A report by the Assistant Director (Localities) is attached.

7  REPORT RELATING TO GROUP 2 MEDICALS  (Pages 81 - 90)

A report by the Assistant Director (Localities) is attached.

8  URGENT BUSINESS  

Any other business, which by reason of special circumstances, the Chair 
agrees may be considered as a matter of urgency.

9  EXCLUSION OF PRESS AND PUBLIC  

To consider passing the appropriate resolution under section 100 (A)(4) of 
the Local Government Act 1972 that the press and public be excluded 
from the meeting during consideration of the following item of business 
since it involves the likely disclosure of the exempt information stated.

10  SUSPENSION/REVOCATION OF A HACKNEY CARRIAGE DRIVER'S 
LICENCE  (Pages 91 - 94)

A report by the Assistant Director (Localities) is attached.

11  APPLICATIONS FOR PUBLIC/PRIVATE HIRE DRIVERS' LICENCES  
(Pages 95 - 102)

A report by the Assistant Director (Localities) is attached.





This page is intentionally left blank



95

Minutes of: LICENSING AND SAFETY PANEL

Date of Meeting: 27 July 2017

Present: Councillor D Jones (in the Chair), 
Councillors: P Adams, N Bayley, 
R Hodkinson, O Kersh, A McKay and Sarah 
Southworth, J Walker and S Wright

     
Apologies for absence: Councillors I Bevan, M Connolly, 

J Grimshaw and G Keeley 

Public Attendance: There were 15 members of the public in 
attendance

___________________________________________________________________

LSP.113 DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST

There were no declarations of interest raised in relation to any items on 
the agenda.

LSP.114 MINUTES

Delegated decision:

That the Minutes of the Licensing and Safety Panel meeting held on 15 
June 2017, be approved as a correct record and signed by the Chair.

LSP.115 PUBLIC QUESTION TIME

There were no questions raised under this item, albeit the Chair agreed 
that comments and questions on the item relating to the Review of the 
Hackney Carriage Policy, could be made or asked when that item is dealt 
with.

LSP.116 OPERATIONAL REPORT

The Assistant Director (Localities) submitted a report advising Members 
on operational issues within the Licensing Service. Information was 
presented on the number of assessments that had taken place between 
26 May and 7 July 2017.

It was agreed:

That the report be noted.

LSP.117  URGENT BUSINESS

There was no urgent business reported.

LSP.118 EXCLUSION OF THE PRESS AND PUBLIC 

Delegated decision:

Document Pack Page 1 Agenda Item 3



96

Licensing and Safety Panel 27 July 2017

That in accordance with Section 100(A)(4) of the Local Government Act 
1972, the press and public be excluded from the meeting during 
consideration of the following items of business since it involved the 
likely disclosure of information relating to individuals who hold Licences 
granted by the Authority or Applicants for Licences provided by the 
Authority.

LSP.119 SUSPENSION/REVOCATION OF HACKNEY CARRIAGE/PRIVATE 
(E) HIRE DRIVERS’ LICENCE

The Licence Holders were invited to attend the meeting for separate 
hearings. They were invited to address the Panel separately and any 
matters referred to in the Officer’s report.  

1. Licence Holder 18/2017 was invited into the meeting room and 
confirmed that he would be representing himself.

The Chair outlined the procedure to be followed and the Licensing Unit 
Manager presented the report submitted by the Assistant Director 
(Localities) which was accepted by the Licence Holder. This set out the 
reasons for the Licence Holder being before the Panel. 

The report explained that the Licence Holder had been convicted of an 
offence of fraud by failing to disclose to the Department of Work and 
Pensions information that he was working as a self employed private hire 
driver in receipt of earnings which he was under a legal duty to disclose 
intending by that failure to make a gain namely £2500 in Employment 
Support Allowance. The Licence Holder had been convicted in March 
2017 and sentenced to a curfew with electronic monitoring as well as 
being ordered to repay the sum.

The Licence Holder who had been licensed as a Private Hire Driver since 
December 2013, acknowledged the conviction. He explained that he had 
been unable to work for 3-4 weeks due to a medical condition in January 
2015. After returning to work as a private hire driver he had not 
informed the Department of Work and Pensions. The Licence Holder 
reported that he had also been involved in a motor vehicle accident in 
January 2017 and was still suffering from the injuries he had sustained. 
He apologised for his actions and explained that at the time his wife was 
pregnant and was suffering from complications. The Licence Holder also 
has to provide and care for three children and he stated that the family 
are suffering as a result of financial pressures. The Licence Holder stated 
that he had forgotten to notify the Licensing Office of his conviction in 
March.

The Chair invited members of the Panel to ask the Licence Holder 
questions.

Delegated decision: 

After carefully considering the written report, oral statements from the 
Licence Holder and taking into account the Council’s Convictions Policy 
and Guidelines, pursuant to the Local Government (Miscellaneous 

Document Pack Page 2



97

Licensing and Safety Panel 27 July 2017

Provisions) Act 1976, the Panel resolved, unanimously, to admonish 
Licence Holder 18/2017 as to his conduct but to take no further 
action.
 
The Panel noted;

 That the offence was of a serious nature
 That the Licence Holder had expressed genuine regret and 

apologised for his actions
 That the Licence Holder also acknowledged the severity of his 

actions and the consequences of not reporting his convictions.
 The Panel also noted the mitigating factors presented by the 

Licence Holder.
 

2. Licence Holder 17/2017 was invited into the meeting room and 
confirmed that he would be representing himself.

The Chair outlined the procedure to be followed and the Licensing Unit 
Manager presented a report submitted by the Assistant Director 
(Localities) which was accepted by the Licence Holder. This set out the 
reasons for the Licence Holder being before the Panel. 

The report explained that the Licence Holder had appeared before the 
Panel for the reason that he had received a caution from the Police on 25 
June 2014 and had failed to disclose this after the original grant of his 
Private Hire Drivers Licence on 23 June 2016 and on its subsequent on 
renewal applications in 2015 and 2016. The caution had been issued for 
the offence of assault occasioning actual bodily harm (Offences against 
the person Act 1861 s.47).

The Licence Holder had completed a Disclosure and Barring Service 
(DBS) check with the Authority on 12 June 2017, at which time the 
caution was revealed.

The Licence Holder acknowledged that he had received a caution from 
the Police and explained that this had been the first time he had been in 
trouble with the law. The Licence Holder stated that the incident leading 
to the issue caution related to an argument between the Licence Holder 
and a friend. The Licence Holder had requested his friend to stop 
smoking cannabis outside of his property in view of the children close 
by. After refusing to stop smoking an argument ensued which escalated 
into a physical fight. The Police were called and the friend alleged an 
assault against the Licence Holder.

The Licence Holder stated that he had not disclosed the caution on his 
renewal form as he did not understand the question on the form and 
thought a caution was not serious enough to include because it had not 
resulted in his attendance at court. He also stated that he did not realise 
this would show on his DBS.

The Licence Holder explained that as result of his action his family were 
suffering financially. His wife was pregnant and he had four children to 
care for and support. The Licence Holder stated that he has a disabled 

Document Pack Page 3



98

Licensing and Safety Panel 27 July 2017

brother that he can no longer take out on trips. The Licence Holder 
accepted that he had made a mistake and was sorry for his actions.

The Chair invited members of the Panel to ask the Licence Holder 
questions.

Delegated decision: 

After carefully considering the written report, oral statements from the 
Licence Holder, the written reference from the Licence Holder’s employer 
and taking into account the Council’s Convictions Policy and Guidelines, 
pursuant to the Local Government (Miscellaneous Provisions) Act 1976, 
the Panel resolved, unanimously, that the application for renewal of 
a Private Hire Driver’s Licence by Applicant 17/2017 be granted.

The Panel noted that;
 The offence was of a serious nature
 That the Licence Holder had expressed genuine regret and was 

sorry for his actions 
 The Licence Holder had no other convictions. 
 The Panel also noted the mitigating factors presented by the 

Licence Holder.

3. Licence Holder 19/2017 was invited into the meeting room and 
confirmed that he would be representing himself. The Panel noted that 
the Licence Holder had requested an adjournment prior to the hearing in 
order to obtain legal representation but had decided to proceed without 
it.

The Chair outlined the procedure to be followed and the Licensing Unit 
Manager presented a report submitted by the Assistant Director 
(Localities) which was accepted by the Licence Holder. This set out the 
reasons for the Licence Holder being before the Panel. 

The report explained that the Licence Holder had appeared before the 
Panel on the basis that he was not a fit and proper person to hold a 
licence as he had failed to maintain his vehicle appropriately between 
periodic vehicle inspections. This had resulted in 102 faults/observations 
being identified during the last five periodic inspections, of which 49 
were MOT defined faults, between the period June 2015 and June 2017. 
Due to the vehicle failing two consecutive vehicle inspections during 
2015 the vehicle is currently subject to the maximum of 3 inspections 
during its current 12 month licence period. 

The report went on the explain that the Licence Holder had appeared 
before the Licensing and Safety Panel on 12 December 2016 for failing 
to maintain his vehicle and had been admonished as to his future 
conduct. At that meeting, the Chair had stressed the importance of 
maintaining his vehicle to a high standard to guarantee the safety of the 
public. The Licence Holder had given the Panel at that time an assurance 
that he would purchase a newer vehicle. The Licence Holder explained 
that the purchase of a new vehicle did not take place as the Licence 
Holder had carried out renovation work on his home and because of this 

Document Pack Page 4



99

Licensing and Safety Panel 27 July 2017

he no longer had adequate finances to purchase a vehicle. The Licence 
holder stated that he intended to purchase a new vehicle in November 
2017.

The Licence Holder presented a folder containing receipts for work 
carried out on the vehicle and for the purchase of replacement parts. He 
stated that he had taken the vehicle for a pre-inspection check and could 
provide no explanation for the faults found. On questioning, the Licence 
Holder explained that he had work done to the vehicle carried at garages 
recommended to him by other taxi drivers, although the garages used 
did not carry out MOT inspections. He accepted that he needed a new 
vehicle and was aware that the vehicle needed work doing to it.

The Chair invited members of the Panel to ask the Licence Holder 
questions.

Delegated decision: 

After carefully considering the written report, oral statements from the 
Licence Holder, the documentation provided and taking into account the 
Council’s Convictions Policy and Guidelines, pursuant to the Local 
Government (Miscellaneous Provisions) Act 1976, the Panel resolved, 
unanimously, that the Private Hire Driver’s Licence held by Licence 
Holder 19/2017 be revoked with immediate effect.

The Panel noted the following:
 There were a large number of faults affecting the vehicle
 Many of the faults were MOT failure faults.
 Many of the faults could affect the roadworthiness and safety of 

the vehicle.
 The vehicle in question had been left in a condition where it was 

unsafe to the Licence Holder and other members of the public on 
at least the last two occasions it was tested.

 The Licence Holder appeared to take no responsibility for the 
condition of his vehicle and blamed others.

 The Licence Holder had appeared before the Panel in December 
2016 for a failure to maintain his vehicle.

 The Licence Holder had given the Panel assurances in December 
2016 regarding both maintenance of his vehicle and his plan to 
purchase a new vehicle and he had failed to carry those out.

 The condition of the vehicle had resulted in the Licence Holder 
being brought before the Panel again.

 There was no or no adequate explanation for the failures to 
maintain the vehicle and certain of the faults should have been 
obvious to a professional driver.

 The Panel was not satisfied the Licence Holder was fit and proper 
to hold a licence.

The Licence Holder was advised of their right of appeal to the 
Magistrates Court within 21 days of receiving the decision.

Document Pack Page 5



100

Licensing and Safety Panel 27 July 2017

LSP.120 APPLICATION FOR PRIVATE HIRE DRIVERS’ LICENCE
(E)

The Licensing Unit Manager presented a report submitted by the 
Assistant Director (Localities) regarding an application for Public/Private 
Hire Vehicles Drivers’ Licence.

Applicant 16/2017 attended the meeting and was represented by Mr 
Oakes (The Hackney Drivers Association Ltd).  The Chair outlined the 
procedure to be followed and the Licensing Unit Manager read the report 
which was accepted by the Applicant.  

The report explained that the Applicant had been granted a Private Hire 
Driver’s Licence on 23 September 2013. The Applicant had then 
appeared before the Panel on 13 February 2014 when the licence had 
been revoked. On that occasion the Panel heard an allegation that the 
Applicant had approached a female Civil Enforcement Officer who was 
on duty at 8.22am and had affixed a fixed penalty notice to the his 
vehicle for parking in a suspended parking bay on Wellington Road, 
Bury. The Applicant had approached the Civil Enforcement Officer in an 
angry manner and used foul language to demand the ticket be taken off 
his vehicle. The Civil Enforcement Officer had tried to explain the 
situation but had decided to walk away due to the language being used 
against her. As she walked away she received a blow to the side of her 
head causing her hat to fall to the ground. Following this the Civil 
Enforcement Officer felt a push causing her to stumble forward. 
Assistance was immediately requested and the Applicant removed his 
vehicle from the parking bay and left.

The Licensing and Safety Panel had therefore revoked the Applicant’s 
licence. The Licence Holder then appealed against this decision to the 
Bury and Rochdale Magistrates Court in July 2014. The Applicant did not 
appear at the hearing and the appeal was dismissed. The court ordered 
the Applicant to pay costs of £2050.00 to the Council. The Applicant has 
since been making periodic repayments with £970 still outstanding.

The Applicant applied for a new Private Hire Licence and appeared 
before the Licensing and Safety Panel on 19 January 2017. At that time 
the Panel refused the licence and in particular noted that this was a 
serious matter and the Applicant at that time had only been driving as a 
Licensed Private Hire Driver in Bury for 2 months when the incident 
occurred. The Panel further noted he had shown little remorse for his 
actions and provided no reassurances to the Panel as to his future 
conduct. It therefore did not feel confident as to his future conduct, 
despite the passage of time. The Panel determined the Applicant not to 
be a fit and proper person.

In line with the Council’s Convictions Policy and Guidelines, the 
Applicant was advised by the Licensing Unit to wait until 12 months had 
expired since the revocation before applying for a private hire car 
drivers’ licence again.

The Applicant and his representative Mr Oakes both addressed the Panel 
and explained that when the incident that took place incident on 19 

Document Pack Page 6



101

Licensing and Safety Panel 27 July 2017

November 2013 occurred, the Applicant had been in a great deal of pain 
due to a medical problem caused by a trapped nerve in his leg. The 
Applicant admitted being involved in the confrontation with the Civil 
Enforcement Officer and stated he had lost his temper and hit the Civil 
Enforcement Officer. He denied pushing or using foul language. Mr 
Oakes stated that this was not an excuse but a reason why the offence 
had taken place. The Applicant had been taking pain killers at the time.
 
Mr Oakes stated that the offence had occurred over 3 years ago. The 
Applicant stated he did not realise that where he had parked was a 
suspended parking bay.  He took full responsibility for his actions and 
regretted his behaviour and hoped he could now be given another 
chance as a Private Hire Driver.  He stated that he sincerely regretted 
what had happened and wanted to apologise to the Officer concerned 
and that in future he would behave in an appropriate manner to 
individuals carrying out their duties.  
The Chair asked why the Applicant had decided to make his application 
before the end of the period of 12 months since the revocation in 
January 2017 as the guidance clearly advises that the Panel would 
normally refuse any subsequent application made within 12 months 
unless there are substantial material changes in the individual’s 
circumstances. Mr Oakes stated that the Applicant had moved on and as 
a result of the incident and the subsequent revocation and court 
decision, the Applicant and his family had suffered financially and he 
was unable to obtain regular employment. Mr Oakes stated that the 
incident had not resulted in a criminal conviction but that a charge of 
common assault could have been made against the Applicant. He also 
stated that there were no pending convictions against the Applicant and 
that there had been a substantial time that had elapsed since the 
incident took place, namely 3 and a half years. He went on to state that 
if acceptable, the Applicant would accept a short term licence with 
regular checks being made on his conduct and he gave an undertaking 
there would be no repeat. 

The Chair invited members of the Panel to ask the applicant questions.

Delegated decision:

That after carefully considering the written report, the oral 
representations made by the Licence Holder and his representative, the 
Panel determined the Applicant not to be a fit and proper person in 
accordance with the Local government (Miscellaneous Provisions) Act 
1976 and therefore resolved that the application for a Private Hire 
Driver’s Licence by applicant 16/2017 be refused.

The Panel noted the Applicants personal circumstances but found 
against the Applicant for the following reasons:

 The offence was of a very serious nature. 
 The Applicant’s licence had been revoked in January 2017 and 
no evidence was presented to show any substantial material 
change in circumstances since that decision. 

Document Pack Page 7



102

Licensing and Safety Panel 27 July 2017

 The incident had not resulted in a court case for the reason that 
the Civil Enforcement Officer had not wished to pursue that course 
of action.

The Applicant was informed of his right of appeal to the Magistrates 
Court within 21 days.

The meeting then returned to a public session.

LSP.121 REVIEW OF CURRENT POLICIES RELATING TO THE LICENSING 
AND TESTING OF HACKNEY CARRIAGES

The Assistant Director (Localities) submitted a report regarding the 
Review of the Hackney Carriage Age Policy. The report which was 
summarised by the Licensing Unit Manager, reminded members of the 
decision of the Licensing and Safety Panel on 8 May 2014:

1. That the “exceptional condition” criteria be re-introduced for 
Hackney Carriages at 10 years and as an incentive to encourage 
proactive maintenance and provide for additional testing 
requirements where vehicles fall below acceptable standards, as 
set out in 5.0 of the report.

2. That further to (1) above, existing licence holders be allowed a 3 
year transitional period should they have made financial plans in 
respect of their vehicle to allow them to be licensed subject to the 
”5 fault rule”

The transitional period of three years ended on 1 June 2017. A 
notification letter was sent to all Hackney Carriage vehicle proprietors 
with Bury licences to advise them of the situation. The letter also 
referred to the reintroduction of the exceptional condition criteria for 
vehicles over 10 years old and the requirement that vehicles that are 
tested must meet the criteria in order to be re-licensed.

On 15 June 2017 the Licensing and Safety Panel had resolved to defer 
implementation of the “exceptional condition” criteria until a further 
report was considered.

The Chair invited questions and comments upon the report and its 
recommended options from the members of the public present and in 
particular Mr Oakes (The Hackney Drivers Association Ltd), Mr Bridge (of 
A2Z Licensing) and thirteen Hackney Carriage licence holders.

Mr Bridge representing the Hackney Drivers Association addressed the 
meeting and explained the current state of the Hackney Carriage trade 
in Bury and the issues licence holders have with the current 
arrangements for testing vehicles. He stated that the 10 year policy 
proposed would apply to half of the vehicles operating within Bury and 
that the exceptional condition criteria may limit the number of Hackney 
Carriage vehicles that are wheelchair accessible in line with the Council 
policy. He went on to say that Hackney Carriage drivers also worked on 
private hire operator systems and may decide to not continue with their

Document Pack Page 8



103

Licensing and Safety Panel 27 July 2017

Hackney Carriage licence for financial reasons. Also, the exceptional 
condition policy did not allow for fair wear and tear as part of vehicle 
daily use by the public on the vehicle upholstery. Other considerations 
not referred to in the policy were acts of vandalism and accidents 
resulting in damage to vehicles. In view of the use of larger more robust 
vehicles as Hackney Carriages that also provide wheelchair accessibility, 
the Licensing and Safety Panel were requested to introduce a 15 year 
age policy. 

The Chair invited comments and questions from the other members of 
the public present and then invited input from members of the Panel.

Delegated decision:

That after carefully considering the written report and the comments 
made by and on behalf of the Hackney Carriage Drivers It was 
resolved unanimously:

That approval be given to continue with the current licensing and testing 
policy in relation to Hackney Carriage vehicles up to 10 years and then 
require the vehicle to be subject to the five fault rule.

COUNCILLOR D JONES
CHAIR

(Note:  The meeting started at 7.00 pm and finished at 10.00 pm)

Document Pack Page 9



This page is intentionally left blank



DECISION OF: LICENSING & SAFETY PANEL

DATE: 5TH SEPTEMBER 2017

SUBJECT: OPERATIONAL REPORT  

REPORT FROM: ASSISTANT DIRECTOR (LOCALITIES)

CONTACT OFFICER: M BRIDGE

TYPE OF DECISION:
 
N/A – Report for information only

FREEDOM OF 
INFORMATION/STATUS: This paper is in the public domain

SUMMARY: A report to advise members on operational issues within 
the licensing service.

IMPLICATIONS:

Wards Affected: N/A

Scrutiny Interest: Internal Scrutiny Panel

1.0 BACKGROUND 

1.1 The report advises Members on operational issues within the licensing service.

2.0 PRE-APPLICATION  ASSESSMENTS

2.1 Further to the last meeting of the Licensing and Safety Panel. The Licensing 
Service can confirm that the assessments are continuing to be undertaken by 
the adult learning team. From the 7th July 2017 until the 18th August 2017 
there has been 33 assessments carried out. Of the 33 assessments that were 
booked, 30 passed, 3 failed and 0 failed to attend. 

3.0 APPEAL WITHDRAWN

3.1 Following the introduction of the pre-requisite requirements being introduced 
prior to making an application to become a hackney carriage/private hire 
driver, the licensing service has recently been subject to an appeal at 
Manchester Magistrates Court  by an applicant who had previously been a 
private hire driver and a hackney carriage driver. The Magistrates confirmed 
that the appeal was dismissed.  The Magistrates concluded that the licensing 

1

Agenda
Item

REPORT FOR DECISION

Document Pack Page 11 Agenda Item 5



authority had not refused to renew the driver’s licences and that the application 
to renew had not been made in the correct timeframe.

The Magistrate’s Court also ordered the Applicant to pay the Respondent’s inter 
partes costs ( solicitor  / own client costs) , summarily assessed in the sum of 
£500.00.  

The applicant then appealed the Magistrates Court decision to the Crown Court. 
This was listed for the 11th August 2017 for a fix and mention hearing, however 
the applicant decided not to proceed further with his appeal, email confirmation 
was received by the Crown Court from the applicant on 04th August 2017.

4.0 JUDICIAL REVIEW

4.1  A notice of application prior to Judicial Review was received by the Licensing 
Service in relation to the proposed exceptional conditions test considered by 
the committee at the last panel. This also referred to the alleged refusal of the 
exceptional conditions test by a Hackney Carriage Vehicle. The Service 
responded to the notice within the required 14 days and as a result the 
application for judicial review is now no longer being considered by the client.

Contact Details:
M Bridge
Licensing Unit Manager
3 Knowsley Place
Duke Street
Bury
BL9 0EJ Tel: 0161 253 5209   Email: m.bridge@bury.gov.uk

2

Document Pack Page 12

mailto:m.bridge@bury.gov.uk


DECISION OF: LICENSING & SAFETY PANEL

DATE: 5th SEPTEMBER 2017

SUBJECT: CONDITIONS RELATING TO A DOG CRECHE

REPORT FROM: ASSISTANT DIRECTOR (LOCALITIES) 

CONTACT OFFICER: MR M BRIDGE

TYPE OF DECISION: COUNCIL 

FREEDOM OF 
INFORMATION/STATUS: This paper is in the public domain

SUMMARY: This report relates to a request from a licence holder to 
remove a condition from his Animal Boarding 
Establishment licence.

OPTIONS & 
RECOMMENDED OPTION

 Remove condition 28 from the licence 
 Refuse to remove Condition 28 from the licence 

IMPLICATIONS:

Corporate Aims/Policy 
Framework:

Do the proposals accord with the Policy 
Framework? Yes No

Statement by the S151 Officer:
Financial Implications and Risk 
Considerations:

There are no specific issues from the report 
other than potential costs/risks associated 
with legal appeals

Statement by Executive Director 
of Resources:

The cost of the licensing function are funded 
through the fees and charges levied by the 
Council.  There may be additional costs if 
appeals are lodged with the Magistrates and 
Crown Courts.

Equality/Diversity implications: Yes No
(see paragraph below)

Considered by Monitoring Officer: Under the legislation the Council is required 
to determine applications.  The report is in 
accordance with the appropriate legislation.

1

Agenda
Item

REPORT FOR DECISION

Document Pack Page 13 Agenda Item 6



Wards Affected: All

Scrutiny Interest: Overview and Scrutiny Panel

TRACKING/PROCESS DIRECTOR:

Chief Executive/
Strategic Leadership 

Team

Executive 
Member/Chair

Ward Members Partners

Scrutiny Committee Committee Council

1.0 BACKGROUND 

1.1 The Animal Boarding Establishment Act 1963 is the relevant legislation which 
relates to the boarding of dogs and cats. The Council has specific conditions 
which relate to Kennels, catteries and boarding of animals at domestic 
premises.

1.2 On 12th October 2010, the Licensing & Safety Panel considered and approved 
licence conditions relating to dog crèches in order to give more specific control 
in this growing market area.  A copy of the conditions are attached at Appendix 
1. This report is specifically concerned with Condition 28 which states as 
follows:

‘Full males, bitches in season and puppies under six months of age must not be 
boarded with other dogs’.

1.3 Bury Council adopted this particular condition in order to ensure the safety of all 
dogs attending a crèche. If a pup was to sustain any damage or injury inflicted 
by an older dog, then the responsibility would rest with the licence holder for 
accepting a pup under 6 months old. 

1.4 Animal Boarding Licence AB0003 in the name of Stay and Play Doggy Day Care 
was issued on the 16/12/2017, it is valid for one year from the 1/1/2017 to 
31/12/2017. Licences are renewed annually.

1.5 On the 19th January 2017, the Licensing and Safety Panel considered a request 
from Mr Millington to remove condtion 28 from the Animal Boarding 
Establishment Licence, the members considered the request and resolved the 
following:-

After carefully considering the written report, oral statements from the Licence 
Holder and taking into consideration written evidence, the Panel agreed on a 
majority decision to refuse the request to remove condition 28 from the licence.  

The Panel noted that Mr Millington had some experience in running the 
business and had further experience with dogs. It further noted the various 
certificates demonstrating the training undertaken by the Licence Holders and 

2

Document Pack Page 14



their staff. However, as the licence had only been granted on 1 September 
2016, it was felt by the Panel that further time was needed in order that the 
Licence Holders could demonstrate that safety standards were being met, that 
the Licence Holders were able to provide the best care and for the welfare of all 
the animals, and that there had been no complaints or concerns regarding the 
establishment.

1.6 Mrs Sandra Coombes Bury Council’s Animal Health and Welfare Officer  
attended the panel to assist with questions relating to the socialisation of dogs.

2.0 REQUEST TO REMOVE CONDITION 28 FROM THE LICENCE

2.1 On the 19th May 2017 , the licensing Service received another request from Mr 
Luke Millington, Managing Director of Stay N Play Doggy Day Care Ltd, Unit 1 
Dale Industrial Estate, Phoenix Way, Radcliffe, M26 1AD to remove condition 28 
from the Animal Boarding Establishment Licence, copy of which is attached at 
Appendix 1. 

2.2 Following the above request, further information has been received on the 7th 
July 2017 from Mr Millington’s representative, a copy of which is attached at 
Appendix 2. 

3.0 CONCLUSION 

3.1 Members are asked to consider the request from Mr Millington to remove 
condition 28 from licence.

List of Background Papers:-
Dog crèche  conditions 
Previous Written request from Mr Millington and supporting documentation.
Licensing and Safety Panel Report and minutes – 19th January 2017.

Contact Details:-
Mr M. Bridge
Licensing Office
3 Knowsley Place
Duke Street
Bury
BL9 OEJ
Telephone: 0161 253 5209
Email: m.bridge@bury.gov.uk  

3

Document Pack Page 15

mailto:m.bridge@bury.gov.uk


This page is intentionally left blank



Document Pack Page 17



Document Pack Page 18



Document Pack Page 19



Document Pack Page 20



Document Pack Page 21



Document Pack Page 22



Document Pack Page 23



Document Pack Page 24



Document Pack Page 25



Document Pack Page 26



Document Pack Page 27



Document Pack Page 28



Document Pack Page 29



Document Pack Page 30



Document Pack Page 31



Document Pack Page 32



Document Pack Page 33



Document Pack Page 34



Document Pack Page 35



Document Pack Page 36



Document Pack Page 37



Document Pack Page 38



Document Pack Page 39



Document Pack Page 40



Document Pack Page 41



Document Pack Page 42



Document Pack Page 43



Document Pack Page 44



Document Pack Page 45



Document Pack Page 46



Document Pack Page 47



Document Pack Page 48



Document Pack Page 49



Document Pack Page 50



Document Pack Page 51



Document Pack Page 52



Document Pack Page 53



Document Pack Page 54



Document Pack Page 55



Document Pack Page 56



Document Pack Page 57



Document Pack Page 58



Document Pack Page 59



Document Pack Page 60



Document Pack Page 61



Document Pack Page 62



Document Pack Page 63



Document Pack Page 64



Document Pack Page 65



Document Pack Page 66



Document Pack Page 67



Document Pack Page 68



Document Pack Page 69



Document Pack Page 70



Document Pack Page 71



Document Pack Page 72



Document Pack Page 73



Document Pack Page 74



Document Pack Page 75



Document Pack Page 76



Document Pack Page 77



Document Pack Page 78



Document Pack Page 79



Document Pack Page 80



 

MEETING: LICENSING & SAFETY PANEL

DATE: 5TH SEPTEMBER 2017

SUBJECT: GROUP 2 MEDICALS                                                                                                                                                                                  

REPORT FROM: ASSISTANT DIRECTOR (LOCALITIES)

CONTACT OFFICER: MR M BRIDGE

TYPE OF DECISION: COUNCIL 

FREEDOM OF 
INFORMATION/STATUS: This paper is in the public domain 

SUMMARY: This report relates to Group 2 Medicals that are required 
by Applicants/Licence Holders for Hackney 
Carriage/Private Hire Driver Licences.

OPTIONS & 
RECOMMENDED OPTION

Continue with the current policy that the medical 
assessment is completed by the applicant/licence 
holders own doctor

Or

In addition permit applicant/licence holders to 
obtain a medical assessment from a pre approved 
alternative provider and to delegate to the Head 
of Service (Trading Standards and Licensing) 
following consultation with the Chairman of the 
Licensing and Safety Panel, to approve alternative 
providers to carry out the driver assessment. 

1

Agenda
Item

REPORT FOR DECISION
Agenda
Item

Document Pack Page 81 Agenda Item 7



IMPLICATIONS:

Corporate Aims/Policy 
Framework:

Do the proposals accord with the Policy 
Framework? Yes  No 

Financial Implications and Risk 
Considerations:

There are no specific issues from the report 
other than potential costs/risks associated 
with legal appeals.

Statement by Director of Finance 
and E-Government:

The medical assessment is a prerequisite to 
the licensing application process. The 
assessment will be paid for by the applicant 
direct to the external provider carrying out 
the assessment with no cost implications to 
the Council.

Equality/Diversity implications: Yes  No 

Considered by Monitoring Officer: Yes           Comments

Are there any legal implications? Under the legislation the Council is required 
to determine applications. The report is in 
accordance with the appropriate legislation.

Staffing/ICT/Property: None

Wards Affected: All

Scrutiny Interest: Internal Scrutiny Panel

TRACKING/PROCESS DIRECTOR:

Chief Executive/
Strategic Leadership 

Team

Executive 
Member/Chair

Ward Members Partners

Scrutiny Committee Committee Council

1.0 BACKGROUND 

1.1 Applications for public/private hire drivers licences are considered under Section 
51 or Section 59 of the Local Government (Miscellaneous Provisions) Act 1976, 
which provide that applications of this nature shall not be granted unless the 
Council are satisfied that the applicants are “fit and proper” persons to hold 
such licences.

1.2 Currently the Licensing Service require medical reports for all new applicants for 
driver licences of all description.

2

Document Pack Page 82



1.3 On reaching 45, currently licensed drivers are required to obtain a medical 
report and are required to be passed fit every five years. From the age of 65 an 
annual certification is required.

1.4 The Council’s current policy is that all drivers must meet the requirements of 
the Group 2 standard for category C1 vehicles as set out by the DVLA . 

1.5 Additional requirements are specified in respect of drivers who are insulin-
dependant diabetics. If a drivers diabetes is managed by insulin, sulphonylurea 
or glinide the driver must test his/her blood glucose every two hours whilst 
driving. This change was introduced in March 2016.  

1.6 Currently the licensing service  require the medical assessment to be carried 
out by the applicants/licence holder’s own doctor. The Council has a template 
medical report which is given to the applicant/licence holder for their doctor to 
complete. A copy of the medical report is attached for member’s information at 
Appendix 1. 

2.0 ISSUES 

2.1 A request has been received from Mr Oakes, Chairman of the Hackney Drivers 
Association Limited asking the Council to permit applicants and licence holders 
to have their medical assessment undertaken by an alternative provider. The 
reason stated for the request is that fees charged for the medical assessment 
by the alternative provider are currently cheaper than the fee charged by their 
own doctor for carrying out the assessment. 

2.2 The Licensing Service have contacted alternative providers and have received 
detailed information on how the assessments are carried out. 

3.0 CONCLUSION 

3.1 Members are requested to determine whether to consider changing the present 
policy for determining the medical fitness of Hackney Carriage and Private hire 
drivers. 

Options:

1 Continue with the current policy that the medical assessment is 
completed by the applicant/licence holders own doctor;

Or

2 In addition permit applicant/licence holders to obtain a medical 
assessment from a pre approved alternative provider and to delegate to the 
Head of Service (Trading Standards and Licensing) following consultation with 
the Chairman of the Licensing and Safety Panel, to approve alternative 
providers to carry out the driver assessment. 

3

Document Pack Page 83



List of Background Papers:-

Application Forms

Contact Details:-

Mr M. Bridge
Licensing Unit Manager
3 Knowsley Place
Duke Street
Bury
BL9 OEJ
Telephone: 0161 253 5209
Email: m.bridge@bury.gov.uk 

4

Document Pack Page 84

mailto:m.bridge@bury.gov.uk


Document Pack Page 85



Document Pack Page 86



Document Pack Page 87



Document Pack Page 88



Document Pack Page 89



Document Pack Page 90



Document is Restricted

Document Pack Page 91 Agenda Item 10



This page is intentionally left blank



Document is Restricted

Document Pack Page 95 Agenda Item 11



This page is intentionally left blank


	Agenda
	3 MINUTES
	5 OPERATIONAL REPORT
	6 CONDITIONS RELATING TO A DOG CRECHE
	APPENDIX 1 - DD
	APPENDIX 2 - DD

	7 REPORT RELATING TO GROUP 2 MEDICALS
	APPENDIX 1 - MEDICAL

	10 SUSPENSION/REVOCATION OF A HACKNEY CARRIAGE DRIVER'S LICENCE
	11 APPLICATIONS FOR PUBLIC/PRIVATE HIRE DRIVERS' LICENCES

